Supreme Court of Mississippi Court of Appeals of the State of Mississippi office of the Clerk

Detty W. Sephton

Post office Box 249

Jackson Mississippi 392050249

OCT 26 2007

RE: John Roland Myles Jr. V. State of Mississipping Control Supreme Count # 2007-CP-011105-COA

TOBY: Hon. Judges

THEASE DE Advised that I want this Court to Know that I John Boland Myle. JR. NEVER WAS Advised from my Attorney MR. Russ DARNETT JR. that I was Recieving 10 years on DECEMber 4, 2001. The last thing MR. Ross BARNELL JR had stat O ME WAS BACK IN NOV. 2006 IN the BANKIN County joil was he had talk with the 15st. DA by the Name of (John H. Emfinger) and MR. Emfinger was offering (5 year) in the Charge of Grand LARCENY. MR. Ross BARNETT had also Call my mother and TATHER Who ARE (LILE D. Myles) And (MR. John Myles SR.) At 601-992-3372 120 woody Dri Brandon, ms 39047 back in Nov. 2001. And Advised both of my family member Ithan [would be recieving (5 year) or less when I go to Court. But all of a Sudden a NEW Asst. DA CAME IN ON the CASE AND gave me to years that I did not know any thing about which was wrong because my Attorney never told me any thing about 10 year the offer was always 5 years by my Attorney. The Assistant District Attorney And MR. Ross BARNELL JR. HAS Rail Roaded me in prison on 10 years which is not night at all. I was gave the max on the Charge when I Could have went to thial Court and wouldn't have not gotten 10 years. I want to make sun the Count Know that this is a NoNE Violent Charge and I'm not a Habitual OFFENCE and has not been to prison but once. The Court CAN BEVIEW the TRANSCRIPS ON PAGE And you will SEE FOR your SEIF when the Assistant District Attorney MR. WALKERBIES Said the State was offering 10 years T stopped and Ask My Attorney MR. Ross BARNE what do he mean to years. It is plain is Day on (page 7) on the Transcript you will SEE that I did not give the Judge (NO RESpond) back two times because I was questioning MR. Boss Barnett why, is they giving me 10 years. Now the statemen MR. Russ BARNIETT JR. GAVE ME back was John just say yes sir so I just went along with Ross Branett JR. thinking he was going to fix the time. Please be Adv that I NEVER WAS TAKEN OVER the Plea sheet step by step and I never did REad OVER NO PLEA Sheet NONE What SO EVER. MR. ROSS BARNETT JR. just pointed to different place N the plea sheet and told me to just Sign it and Rush me in FRONT OF the

Note plea sheet and told me co just sign the papers I was thinking I was signing Indge. All the time I was signing the papers I was thinking I was signing for 5 year like my attorney had advised me of. Just months before I went to fourt MR. Ross Barnett had just had a (STROKE) after he had went on a vacation and that Could have been the hole problem. The bottom Line Number one I John R. And that Could have been the hole problem. The bottom Line Number one I John R. Myles Jr. Never KNEW that I had sign a piece of paper for 10 years because my myles Jr. Never knew that I had sign a piece of paper for 10 years. Number 2 The Attorney never stated out of his mouth any thing about NO 10 years. Number 2 The Judge Niever question or Ask me whether or not if I was on any Type of medication or Dru

Supreme Court of Mississippi Court of Appeals of The state of Mississippi office of the Clerk

DATE Oct. 21, 2007

t the time of the plen on Dec. 4, 2006 which is a violation because I was on sychiatrist medication for on going problems I've had since the year 1996. I know I Should have been asked that question and to my under standing every Judge ask that mestion because people to have problems and I believe the Judge should have know my PROBLEMS. I Know and Fill that my U.S. Constitutions Rights have been violated against n this major Issue dealing with this 10 year that I never knew any thing about would say I was tricked into signing that plea by my Attorney and I have SEN Bail Roaded And I'm being hold on A unlawful prison SENTENCE IN the State of Mississippi which is wrong. My family hired this Attorney to help me Not throw ne Away So they are willing to Come to any hearing to Testify on the behalf that Ross Barnett JR 501 South State Street Jackson Mississippi 39201 telephone # 001- 948-6640 has lied, to them.

Mother-LILLE D. Myles FAther- John Myles SR. 120 Woody DRIVE BRANDON MS 39047 BRANdON M'S 39047

To The HON. Judges Please be Advised That I John Roland Myles, JR, have SERVE TOTAL I YEAR 156 DAYS Plus time From DEC. 6, 2006 until NOW ON This Grand LARCENY CHARGE. I ASK The Court To Please GRANT ME Some KIND OF PIELIEF ON this NONE VIOLENT CHARGE that I HAVE BEEN Rail RoadEd ON.

With Kindest Regards, I Am

John Koland Myles Ju. John Roland Myles JR. Unit 32 / ALPHA MARCHMAN, Mississippi 38738

God Bless You

1	TH BUT CIDCUID COURS OF PANKIN COURSE MICCICATERI
	IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
2	1
3	STATE OF MISSISSIPPI PLAINTIFF
4	
5	v. CAUSE NO. 16384
6	JOHN R. MYLES DEFENDANT
7	
8	CHARGE(S): BURGLARY OF A DWELLING HOUSE
9	
10	BE IT REMEMBERED on December 4, 2006, the above-styled case come on for the Defendant's Plea
11	of Guilty before the Honorable Judge Şamac Richardson, in Brandon, Mississippi, and the
12	following proceedings were held and done, to-wit:
13	
14	·
15	APPEARANCES:
16	WALKER BLECK, ESQUIRE
17	Assistant District Attorney Post Office Box 121
18	Brandon, Mississippi 39046
19	COUNSEL FOR THE PLAINTIFF
20	ROSS BARNETT, JR., ESQUIRE Barnett Law Firm
21	501 South State Street Jackson, Mississippi 39201
22	COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANT
23	
24	
25	REPORTED BY:
26	Harvey J. Rayborn, CSR #1274 Rayborn Court Reporting Services
27	Post Office Box 720248 Jackson, Mississippi 39272
28	TEL: (601) 376-0336 FAX: (601) 376-0323
29	e-mail: Raybornhj@aol.com
ムラ	

1	TABLE OF CONTENTS		
2	Title and Appearances	1	
3	Table of Contents	2	
4	Proceedings - Open Court Guilty Plea	3	
5	Sentencing by the Court	9	
6	Certificate of Court Reporter	12	
7			
8			
9			
10			
11			
12			
13	·		
14			
15			
16			
17			
18			
19			
20			
21			
22			
23			
24			
25			
26			
27			
28			
29			

 $\langle \cdot \rangle$

1	P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S
2	JOHN R. MYLES,
3	having first been duly sworn by the Honorable Judge
4	Samac Richardson, testified as follows, to-wit:
5	THE COURT: Okay. I have before me a
6	Petition in Criminal Cause Number 16384, State of
7	Mississippi versus John Roland Myles.
8	Mr. Myles, you have filed a petition to
9	plead guilty to grand larceny as a lesser included
10	offense of house burglary. You say that your
11	Social Security number is 427-45-7731, date of
12	birth, 11-24-74. You've completed 11 years of
13	school. You're represented by Mr. Ross Barnett, Jr.
14	All right. Did you read and sign or
15	initial each page of this guilty plea petition?
16	A. Yes, sir. Also And HE KNOW I did Not READ quilty PLEA
17	THE COURT: Did you read, sign and initial
18	the acknowledgment that you viewed the guilty plea
19	video?
20	A. Yes, sir.
21	THE COURT: Did you understand the guilty
22	plea video?
23	A. Yes, sir. Yes, sir.
24	THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any
25	questions about that guilty plea video?
26	A. No, sir.
27	THE COURT: Do you understand the nature
28	of the charges brought against you?
29	A. Yes, sir.

1 THE COURT: Do you understand the nature and consequences of entering a plea of guilty to 2 3 these charges? 4 Α. Yes, sir. 5 THE COURT: Or charge I should say. you satisfied with the service, advice, counsel and 6 7 assistance of your attorney? 8 Α. Yes, sir. 9 THE COURT: Do you have any complaints you 10 want to make about your attorney? 11 Α. No, sir. 12 THE COURT: Have you ever pled quilty to a 13 felony offense in any court our jurisdiction? 14Α. Yes, sir. 15 THE COURT: Did you go through a question 16 and answer session similar to this one? 17 Yes, sir. Α. 18 THE COURT: Did you understand what you were doing when you pled guilty the last time? 19 20 Α. Yes, sir. 21 THE COURT: Do you understand what you're 22 doing today by pleading guilty? 23 Α. Yes, sir. 24 THE COURT: Do you understand your 25 constitutional rights as they were explained to you in the guilty plea video and as are set out 26 specifically in your guilty plea petition? 27 28 Α. Yes, sir.

Do you wish to waive and give

THE COURT:

29

1 up your constitutional rights and continue with this hearing on your petition to enter a plea of guilty? 2 3 Α. Yes, sir. 4 THE COURT: The State of Mississippi will 5 be required by this Court to prove the elements of the crime with which you are charged, beyond a 6 7 reasonable doubt, in front of a jury before a jury could return a verdict of guilty. The elements of 8 this Court would require the State to prove that you 9 10 did, in Rankin County, Mississippi, on or about February the 19th, 2004, take steal -- excuse me --11 12 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously take, steal 13 and carry away the personal property of another person with the intent to permanently deprive that 14 15 person of possession of that property. What kind of 16 property was it? 17 MR. ROSS: Money. 18 THE COURT: Money. It would have to be valued in excess of \$500 U. S. currency, or coins as 19 20 the case may be. 21 Do you understand the elements of the 22 crime the State would be required to prove? 23 Α. Yes, sir. 24 THE COURT: No minimum penitentiary 25

THE COURT: No minimum penitentiary sentence. The maximum penitentiary sentence is 10 years. No minimum fine. The maximum fine is \$10,000.

26

27

28

29

Do you understand the minimum and maximum sentences that could be imposed?

A. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you understand that the current law requires a certain percentage or portion of any sentence imposed and not suspended must be served by you before you would be considered for release from incarceration?

A. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: What facts does the State prove if this matter went to trial, Mr. Bleck?

MR. BLECK: Your Honor, the State, if this case went on trial on the lesser included offense of grand larceny, they would prove that on or about the 19th day of February of 2004, in Rankin County, within the jurisdiction of this Court, John R. Myles did willfully, unlawfully and feloniously take, steal and carry away the personal property of Larry Bain, that being a lot of coins, and those coins were taken from 527 Madeleine Court in Brandon, Mississippi, in Rankin County, with the intent to permanently deprive the owner, Larry Bain, thereof.

THE COURT: Do you wish to challenge or correct any of the facts stated by the prosecutor handling your case, Mr. Myles?

A. No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you agree with the facts that the prosecutor has stated to the Court?

A. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: What's the State's

·)

· — ′

WHEN MR. Bleck said the State is RECOMMENDING the MAX SENTENCE Started questioning Ross BARNETT And he was saying 7 ON All these question below. 1 recommendation as to sentence, Mr. Bleck? 2 MR. BLECK: Ten years in the custody of 3 the Mississippi Department of Corrections, \$1,800 in 4 restitution. 5 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Myles, do you 6 understand that the State of Mississippi is 7 recommending that this Court impose the maximum sentence on you? 8 ROSS BARNETT Told ME TO SAY YES SIR HERE 9 (A . Yes, sir. 10 THE COURT: Do you understand that? 11 Α. Yes, sir. 12 THE COURT: They're recommending the maximum for grand larceny. Is your plea of guilty 13 14 freely and voluntarily made and entered? John Roland Myles was asking 15 (No response.) Ross BARNETT why, did they give me loyears 16 Is your plea of guilty freely THE COURT: 17 made? 18 Α. Yes, sir. 19 THE COURT: Is it made voluntarily? John Roland myles was questioning man (No response.) BARNETT again why. Lid MR. Bleck give me lo yes, 20 21 MR. ROSS: Nobody's making you enter it? 22 No, sir. This is when MR. Ross BARNETT said no, sir. just say No sir John 23 MR. ROSS: No, sir, nobody is making me 24 plead or, yes, sir, it is voluntarily made? 25 Α. Nobody's making me. 26 THE COURT: Okay. You're doing this of your own free will; is that right? 27 Ross Barnett told me to say VES sir here 28 Yes, sir. 29 Who made the decision to enter THE COURT:

is WHEN I Found out I WAS GETTING TEN YEARS

1 this plea of guilty? 2 Α. Me. 3 THE COURT: Okay. Nobody has forced you 4 to plead guilty, have they? 5 Α. No, sir. 6 THE COURT: Do you think anybody has 7 tricked you into pleading guilty? 8 Α. No, sir. 9 THE COURT: Anybody promised you anything 10 to get you to plead quilty? 11 Α. No, sir. 12 THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to offer you 13 an -- excuse me. Do you have any questions about 14 your guilty plea hearing today? 15 Α. No, sir. 16 THE COURT: I'm going to offer you an 17 opportunity to withdraw your petition to plead 18 guilty and allow your case to go to trial if you 19 want to do that. 20 Do you wish to withdraw your petition to 21 plead guilty? 22 Α. No, sir. 23 How do you plead to the crime THE COURT: 24 of grand larceny as a lesser included offense of house burglary, Cause 16384? How do you plead? 25 26 Α. Guilty. 27 THE COURT: The Court finds the 28 Defendant's plea of guilty is freely, voluntarily 29 and knowingly and intelligently made and entered and

```
further has a factual basis. The Court, therefore,
 1
 2
     accepts the Defendant's plea of guilty and
     adjudicates the Defendant to be guilty of the crime
 3
     of grand larceny, Criminal Cause Number 16384.
 4
 5
     A judgment of conviction will be entered against
 6
     you.
 7
               Do you have anything you want to say prior
 8
     to imposition of sentence by the Court?
 9
          Α.
               No, sir.
10
               THE COURT:
                           Mr. Barnett?
11
               MR. ROSS:
                          No, your Honor.
12
               THE COURT:
                           Mr. Bleck?
13
               MR. BLECK:
                           No, your Honor.
14
               THE COURT:
                           Anyone else in the courtroom?
15
               (No responses.)
16
               (Sentencing of the Court.)
17
               THE COURT:
                           Mr. Myles, Cause 16384,
    it will be the sentence of this Court that you serve
18
    a term of 10 years in the custody of the Mississippi
19
    Department of Corrections. You will pay restitution
20
21
    in the amount $1,800. You will pay court costs,
22
    statutory fees and assessments of $279.50.
    will be paid at the rate of $100 per month beginning
23
24
    on the last working day of the first full calendar
25
    month after your release from custody.
26
               I'm going to require also that you, while
27
    you're an inmate with the Mississippi Department of
    Corrections, that you become enrolled in a GED
28
```

29

course of study.

```
1
                Do you have any question about the
 2
     sentence?
 3
          Α.
                No, sir.
 4
                      (End of proceedings.)
 5
 6
 7
 8
. 9
10
11
12
1.3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
```