# IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MCS STATE

JOHN ROLAND MYLES, JR.

**APPELLANT** 

VS.

FILEDO. 2007-CP-1165-COA

NOV 3 0 2007

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**APPELLEE** 

#### BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JEFFREY A. KLINGFUSS
SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

##

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
STATEMENT OF FACTS
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 3
ARGUMENT 4
Issue I.
DEFENDANT HAD CONSTITUTIONALLY
EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL
Issue II.
THERE IS NOTHING IN THE RECORD TO
INDICATE THAT DEFENDANT'S PLEA WERE
ANYTHING BUT FREELY, VOLUNTARILY,
KNOWINGLY AND INTELLIGENTLY GIVEN 6
CONCLUSION 8
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 9

## TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

FEDERAL CASES
Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984)
STATE CASES
Covington v. State, 909 So.2d 160, 162 (Miss.Ct.App.2005)
Houston v. State, 461 So.2d 720, 722 (Miss.1984)
Jones v. State, 948 So.2d 499 (Miss.App. 2007)
Law v. State, 822 So.2d 1006 (Miss.App. 2002)
Moore v. State, 676 So.2d 244, 246 (Miss.1996)
Richardson v. State, 769 So.2d 230, 233 (Miss.Ct.App.2000)
Roland v. State, 666 So.2d 747, 750 (Miss.1995)
Smith v. State, 636 So.2d 1220, 1225 (Miss.1994)
Stevenson v. State, 798 So.2d 599, 602 (Miss.Ct.App.2001)

Woodson v. State, 845 So.2d 740, 742 (Miss.Ct.App.2003) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

## IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

JOHN ROLAND MYLES, JR.

**APPELLANT** 

VS.

NO. 2007-CP-1165-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**APPELLEE** 

#### BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The grand jury of Rankin County indicted defendant, John Roland Myles, Jr. for House Burglary. In a plea negotiation, defendant petitioned the trial court to plead guilty to a lesser offense of Grand Larceny. (C.p., Transcript p.19). Defendant's guilty plea was accepted and was sentenced to 10 years in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections.

Subsequently, and within the statutory period, defendant filed a motion for post-conviction relief. (C.p. 5-10). Shortly thereafter, the trial judge denied relief specifically addressing both issues raised in the petition. (Order denying relief, c.p. 28).

A timely notice of appeal was filed and this appeal was perfected.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant, having a prior conviction and not a stranger to the criminal justice system, was caught after burglarizing a home and stealing money. After a plea negotiation he was offered the opportunity for a plea deal if he pled to the lesser offense of grand larceny. Defendant, aided by counsel, meticulously requested to plead guilty, appeared in open court, answered freely and his guilty plea was accepted. He was sentenced to 10 years, plus fines, costs and fees.

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

I.

DEFENDANT HAD CONSTITUTIONALLY EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL.

## Issue II.

THERE IS NOTHING IN THE RECORD TO INDICATE THAT DEFENDANT'S PLEA WERE ANYTHING BUT FREELY, VOLUNTARILY, KNOWINGLY AND INTELLIGENTLY GIVEN.

## **ARGUMENT**

#### T.

## DEFENDANT HAD CONSTITUTIONALLY EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL.

First, defendant claims, obliquely, that his counsel was ineffective because counsel, supposedly, told defendant he would be getting 5 years, and he got 10 years.

The law regarding such a claim of ineffective assistance is clear:

¶10. The standard of review for a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel was set forth by the United States Supreme Court in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984). To bring a successful claim for ineffective assistance of counsel, pursuant to the court's ruling in Strickland, the defendant must prove that his attorney's overall performance was deficient and that this deficiency deprived him of a fair trial. Id. at 689, 104 S.Ct. 2052; Moore v. State, 676 So.2d 244, 246 (Miss.1996) (citing Perkins v. State, 487 So.2d 791, 793 (Miss.1986)). We must be mindful of the "strong but rebuttable presumption that an attorney's performance falls within a wide range of reasonable professional assistance and that the decisions made by trial counsel are strategic." Covington v. State, 909 So.2d 160, 162(¶ 4) (Miss.Ct.App.2005) (quoting Stevenson v. State, 798 So.2d 599, 602(¶ 6) (Miss.Ct.App.2001)). To overcome this presumption, the defendant must demonstrate "that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 694, 104 S.Ct. 2052; Woodson v. State, 845 So.2d 740, 742(¶ 9) (Miss.Ct.App.2003).

Jones v. State, 948 So.2d 499 (Miss.App. 2007).

In *Jones* defendant claimed of trickery in pleading guilty expecting a lesser sentence than received. The reviewing court citing to the record facts that belied those contentions did not find error.

In this transcript defendant, not unfamiliar with criminal process having pled guilty previously, (tr. 20), answered the questions posed in addition to the plea petition prepared by his attorney. In fact defendant was asked specifically if he was pleased with his attorney's performance. (Tr. 20). In fact a careful reading shows the attorney further helping clarify defendant's somewhat ambiguous answer to avoid just such a claim. Tr.23.

Defendant had Constitutionally effective assistance of counsel, who managed to get his previously convicted client a deal to a lesser offense.

The trial court was correct in finding defendant had not met either prong of Strickland in denying relief.

The State would ask that no relief be granted on this allegation of error.

#### Issue II.

THERE IS NOTHING IN THE RECORD TO INDICATE THAT DEFENDANT'S PLEA WERE ANYTHING BUT FREELY, VOLUNTARILY, KNOWINGLY AND INTELLIGENTLY GIVEN.

Defendant essentially admits his guilt but, as all prisoners, merely seeks less time or more favorable conditions. (Probation, house arrest, etc.) In seeking this relief defendant asserts his counsel was ineffective. The details are essentially that his attorney railroaded him through the process.

A look to the transcript show otherwise, first defendant was shown a video about the process, then brought into open court. The trial court made inquiry if he was satisfied with his attorney. Defendant was. The judge told him the sentence range. The judge asked defendant him if he was being tricked or promised anything to plead guilty. Tr. 24.

¶ 10. Law also argues that his plea of guilty was not voluntary due to his attorney's misrepresentation that he would receive a ten year sentence, as opposed to the twenty-five year sentence he actually received, if he would plea in open court. If the defendant is advised regarding the nature of the charge and the consequences of the plea, it is considered "voluntary and intelligent." *Richardson v. State*, 769 So.2d 230, 233(¶ 6) (Miss.Ct.App.2000). Additionally, "[s]olemn declarations in open court carry a strong presumption of verity." Id. *Prior case law dictates that when the record shows that the trial court fully informed the defendant of a mandatory sentence and the defendant acknowledged the sentence, the defendant's claimed expectation for a more lenient sentence is rebutted. Houston v. State*, 461 So.2d 720, 722 (Miss.1984). Furthermore, our supreme court in *Roland v. State*, 666 So.2d 747, 750 (Miss.1995), stated that the plea is rendered voluntary when the

defendant hears from the trial court what the effects and consequences of his guilty plea will be, despite the advice given to the defendant by his attorney. *Roland*, 666 So.2d at 750. See also *Smith v. State*, 636 So.2d 1220, 1225 (Miss.1994).

Law v. State, 822 So.2d 1006 (Miss.App. 2002)(Emphasis added).

Based upon the record, which amply supports the ruling of the trial court there is no error here and no relief should be granted.